
Flag Salute

Presention Greater Grays Harbor- Dru Garson

Public Hearing McCleary Road Annexation

Public Hearing Property Tax Levy

Public Hearing Preliminary Budget

Mayor Comments Budget

Public Comment

Executive Session

Minutes Tab A 2 sets Introduction X Action X

Approval of Vouchers Introduction X Action X

Purchase Orders

Staff Reports Tab B Dan Glenn

Tab C Todd Baun

Old Business Tab D AFG Grant Writer

New Business Tab E Lemay Rates

Tab F Pole Attachment Rates

Ordinances Tab G Grinder Pump Allowance

Tab H McCleary Road Annexation 

Tab I Ad Valorem

Resolutions

Mayor Council Comments

Public Comments

Executive Session

Please turn off Cell Phones- Thank you
Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) Accommodation is Provided Upon Request

The City of McCleary is an equal opportunity provider and employer.

La ciudad de McCleary es un proveedor de igualdad de oportunidades y el empleador

McCleary City Council 
Agenda

Adjournment or Recess Meeting

October 26th, 2016- 6:30 PM

Roll Call: ___Pos. 1- Orffer, ___ Pos. 2-Richey , ___ Pos. 3- Peterson, ___ Pos. 4- Blankenship, ___ Pos. 5- Ator



                                CITY OF MCCLEARY

                       Regular City Council Meeting

                          Wednesday, September 28, 2016

ROLL CALL AND FLAG SALUTE Councilmembers Orffer, Richey, Peterson, Blankenship, and Ator were in attendance.

ABSENT None. Councilmember Orffer attended by phone.

STAFF PRESENT Present at the meeting were Todd Baun, Wendy Collins, Chief Crumb and Dan Glenn. 

PUBLIC HEARING None.

PUBLIC COMMENT Helen Hamilton emphasized her support in the City funding the Children's Advocacy Program. 
Mayor Schiller informed her that it will be included in the 2017 budget.

EXECUTIVE SESSION At 6:32 p.m., Mayor Schiller called for an Executive Session per RCW 42.30.110(i) for ten 
minutes. The Executive Session ended at 6:42 p.m. No action was taken.

MINUTES APPROVED It was moved by Councilmember Ator, seconded by Councilmember Richey to approve 

the September 14, 2016 minutes. Motion Carried 5-0.

VOUCHERS Accounts Payable vouchers/checks approved were 41625 - 41683 including EFT's in the 
amount of $135,772.76. 

It was moved by Councilmember Peterson, seconded by Councilmember Richey to 

approve the vouchers. Motion Carried 5-0.

CITY ATTORNEY REPORT Dan Glenn provided a report for the Council to review. 

DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS 
REPORT

Todd Baun provided a report for the Council to review. 

MAYOR'S COMMENTS Mayor Schiller received alarming information on the state of the budget for capital 
improvement projects for the utilities from the FCS rate study. He will be arranging a Council 
workshop to go over the findings of the study and discuss options.

RAINIER COMMUNICATIONS 
FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

Tabled.

EVERGREEN CONSULTING 
GROUP CONTRACT

It was moved by Councilmember Orffer, seconded by Councilmember Ator to authorize 

the Mayor to sign the contract with Evergreen Consulting Group. Motion Carried 5-0.

COASTAL COMMUNITY ACTION 
PROGRAM (CCAP)

It was moved by Councilmember Ator, seconded by Councilmember Richey to 

authorize the Mayor to sign the annual agreement with Coastal Community Action 

Program. Motion Carried 5-0.

INTERLOCAL MCCLEARY 
SCHOOL

It was moved by Councilmember Richey, seconded by Councilmember Blankenship to 

authorize the Mayor to sign the Interlocal Agreement with the McCleary School District 

provided that the cost not exceed $500 without the prior approval of the District's 

Superintendent. Motion Carried 5-0.

GRINDER PUMP ALLOWANCE Tabled for clarification between the two ordinance versions.

SEPA EFFICIENCY PROCESS Tabled.

RV PARKING ORDINANCE It was moved by Councilmember Orffer, seconded by Councilmember Blankenship to 

adopt Version C of Ordinance 821,  an ordinance relating to parking; adding a new 

section to Chapter 10.20 of the Municipal Code; superseding any ordinance 

inconsistent with its terms; and providing an effective date. Roll Call taken in the 

affirmative. Ordinance Adopted 5-0.

PUBLIC COMMENT None.



MEETING ADJOURNED It was moved by Councilmember Ator, seconded by Councilmembers Peterson and 

Richey to adjourn the meeting at 7:10 pm. The next meeting will be Wednesday, 

October 12, 2016 at 6:30 pm. Motion Carried 5-0.

Approved by Mayor Brent Schiller and Clerk-Treasurer Wendy Collins.



                                CITY OF MCCLEARY

                       Regular City Council Meeting

                          Wednesday, October 12, 2016

ROLL CALL AND FLAG SALUTE Councilmembers Orffer, Peterson, Blankenship, and Ator were in attendance.

ABSENT Councilmember Richey was absent. It was moved by Councilmember Orffer, seconded by

Councilmember Ator to excuse Dustin Richey's absence. Motion Carried 4-0.

STAFF PRESENT Present at the meeting were Todd Baun, Wendy Collins, Chief Crumb, Paul Nott, Jeffrey 
Catterlin and Dan Glenn. 

PUBLIC HEARING At 6:30 pm the Public Hearing opened on the 2017 Projected Revenues. Todd Baun 
presented a PowerPoint presentation and explained how the City receives its revenues and 
from what sources. He also explained why they are allocated to specific funds. The Public 
Hearing closed at 6:42 pm.

EXECUTIVE SESSION None.

MINUTES APPROVED None.

VOUCHERS Accounts Payable vouchers/checks approved were 41687 - 41725 including EFT's in the 
amount of $138,401.32

It was moved by Councilmember Ator, seconded by Councilmember Peterson to 

approve the vouchers. Motion Carried 4-0.

MAYOR'S COMMENTS Mayor Schiller spoke regarding an article in the Vidette that recently was published which 
talked about utility rate hikes going up to 20%, which has a lot of people scared. The City hired 
FCS to perfrom a rate study, and based off of the capital projects that should be done, and a 
safe reserve balance, they recommended a rate increase to meet those goals. They 
recommended a 20% increase in power to meet all of the stated goals. As a City, we know if 
we are to make infrastructure improvements, we have to entertain all the options available. 
The 20% shock value will be taken off the table, however, we will have to review what we need 
to accomplish and how much that will cost. The City knows we have fixed income residents, 
elderly and struggling families. We do not want to create a hardship. We  have to set goals on 
maintaining and operating our utilities and we need to figure out how to fund it.

The reserves that are required are also an issue. Last year, the auditor's office requested the 
City perform a rate study to find out what type of surplus the City should have. Along with the 
rate study, they did suggest 90 days for a reserve amount, however, that will be very difficult to 
accomplish. The City would like to set a resonable goal that we can build toward without 
greatly impacting the rate payers.

PUBLIC COMMENT Tim Hamilton read and commented on an email he sent to the Council regarding grinder 
pumps. He received a response from Jane Hewitt from Grays Harbor County stating she 
received an informal notice from the applicant (whom requested the grinder pump 
authorization from the City) that the project may be revised to 7-lots with on-site septic 
systems. She has not received a revised submittal from the applicant. Until the County hears 
back, the project appears to be on hold, allowing the City Council to take their time to make 
sure they can research it thoroughly and make a sound decision.

Evert Challstedt is concerned about the draw down of the aquifer. The more dense the 
development out on the prairie, the more draw down will occur. He thinks the City really needs 
to focus on is another source for water. It was in the Comprehensive Plan years ago, which is 
now out of date and should be brought up to current status. 

Mayor Schiller said the City is dying. We are trying to bring people here to live. If we are 
pushing our boundaries to bring more people in, then we might have to. We are offering all 
ideas up as an option. We have to be open-minded to bring in more rate payers.

CITY ATTORNEY REPORT Dan Glenn provided a report for the Council to review. 



DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS 
REPORT

Todd Baun provided a report for the Council and is available if they have any questions.

ORDINANCE 822 RAINIER 
COMMUNICATIONS 

FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

It was moved by Councilmember Ator, seconded by Councilmember Orffer to Adopt 

Ordinance 822 granting a nonexclusive telecommunications franchise to Mashell 

Telecom, Inc., a Washington Corporation, setting forth terms and conditions, providing 

an effective date and severability with an amendment in Article III., Section1., B. and C. 

changing the language from “a reasonable time” to 14 days. Roll call taken in the 

affirmative 4-0. Ordinance Adopted.

POLE ATTACHMENT - 
AGREEMENT

It was moved by Councilmember Ator, seconded by Councilmember Orffer to authorize 

the Mayor to sign the Pole Attachment License Agreement. Motion Carried 4-0.

AFG GRANT WRITER Tabled. Councilmember Ator would like to look at hiring a joint grant writer with other local 
cities and share the cost.

POLICEONE ACADEMY It was moved by Councilmember Ator, seconded by Councilmember Blankenship to 

authorize the Mayor to send the McCleary Police Officers to the PoliceOne Academy 

training for an annual cost of $575.00. Motion Carried 4-0.

BIAS 2017 ANNUAL SERVICE 
AGREEMENT

It was moved by Councilmember Ator, seconded by Councilmember Peterson to 

authorize the Mayor to sign the 2017 BIAS Annual Service Agreement. Motion Carried 4-

0.

ITRON MAINTENANCE 
CONTRACT

Itron is the meter software that we use to read our meters with. It was moved by 

Councilmember Orffer, seconded by Councilmember Peterson to authorize the Mayor 

to sign the Itron Contract. Motion Carried 4-0.

TCMS CHILLER MAINTENANCE 
AGREEMENT

The wastewater treatment plant has a 60-ton chiller that we use six-months out of the year to 
cool water that comes through the treatment plant before it gets released to the creek. It has to 
be a certain temperature to meet State regulation. The chiller is ten years old now and last 
year there was a maintenance issue that was costly. TCMS will perform preventative 
maintenance, which will help the chiller to run properly and prevent expensive mechanical 

failures. It was moved by Councilmember Orffer, seconded by Councilmember Peterson 

to authorize the Mayor to sign the TCMS Maintenance Agreement and amend item #11 

to read "3 years". Motion Carried 4-0. 

GH COUNTY TAX LEVY 
REFUND AUTHORIZATION

Each year adjustments are made to the tax rolls after the taxes have been calculated and 
billed. The City of McCleary has an option to collect a refund levy in the amount of $1,209.68. 
Historically, the Council has authorized the tax levy refund and staff requests the same action 

for this year. It was moved by Councilmember Orffer, seconded by Councilmember Ator 

to authorize the Mayor to sign the refund levy. Motion Carried 4-0.

GRINDER PUMP ALLOWANCE Tabled. Councilmember Ator would like to have more time to review the topic because this is 
a brand new Council that needs time to do this right. Todd Baun clarified that this allowance is 
only to allow grinder pumps into our system. It has nothing to do with going outside the city 
limits or going down any specific roads into certain developments. It is specifically to allow 
grinder pumps into our system. Councilmember Ator asked Dan Glenn to confirm that is the 
intention of the allowance and Dan stated that this is for initial review and is as Mr. Baun 
presented. Councilmember Orffer asked Dan Glenn if he would highlight the changes when 
making a new version of a resolution or ordinance so the Council has an easier time seeing 
the difference. She said it's time consuming to review word-for-word to find the differences 
between them. Mr. Glenn agreed to Councilmember Orffer's request.

ORDINANCE 823 SEPA 
EFFICIENCY PROCESS

It was moved by Councilmember Orffer, seconded by Councilmember Blankenship to 

adopt Ordinance 823 relating to environmental protection, implementing a modification 

of the exemption thresholds for certain projects, amending section 18.04.250, providing 

for an effective date, severability, and correction.  The council requested page 2 be 

amended by stating the Fill and Excavation allowance be changed to 500 cubic yards. 

Roll call taken in the affirmative 4-0. Ordinance Adopted.

PUBLIC COMMENT Joy Iverson announced this Saturday will be the health fair at Summit Pacific Hospital.

Evert Challstedt thinks apartment complexes would be a good addition and should be 
addressed as the City moves forward on our planning process. 



Mayor Schiller hopes we can find something out about the investment group that has been 
purchasing properties in McCleary. Helen Lake said she was approached by the investment 
people that bought property along Summit Road and Larson Road. She is very curious about 
what they are planning to do with all the properties they are purchasing.

MEETING ADJOURNED It was moved by Councilmember Ator, seconded by Councilmember Orffer to adjourn 

the meeting at 7:59 pm. The next meeting will be Wednesday, October 26, 2016 at 6:30 

pm. Motion Carried 4-0.

Approved by Mayor Brent Schiller and Clerk-Treasurer Wendy Collins.









STAFF REPORT 

 

To: Mayor Schiller 

From: Todd Baun, Director of Public Works 

Date: October 21st, 2016 

Re: Current Non-Agenda Activity 

 

     

Draft Budget 

 

Please review the draft budget and let me know if you have any questions, concerns, or if 

you want to see anything in the budget.   

 

 

 

 

 

Tab C 



STAFF REPORT 

 

To: Mayor Schiller 

From: Todd Baun- Director of Public Works 

Date: September 26, 2016 

Re: AFG Grant Writer 

 

 

The Fire Department has been applying for the AFG (Assistance to Firefighters Grant).  

This grant is getting extremely competitive and the Firemen that have been completing 

this grant would like to have assistance with writing this grant.  This grant is for Bunker 

gear, SCBA’s and radios and they are requesting $250,000 from the grant to purchase 

these items.   

 

The proposed cost for The Ferguson Group to assist with the design, writing, and 

submission of a competitive 2016 Assistance to Firefighter Grant (AFG) federal grant 

application will cost $5,959.00, which $2,975.00 will be billed up front.   

 

 

 

Action Requested: 

 

Please discuss and decide if you want to allow The Ferguson Group to assist the Fire 

Department with the design, writing, and submission of a competitive 2016 Assistance to 

Firefighter Grant (AFG) federal grant application for a cost $5,959.00.  

Tab D 



 www.thefergusongroup.com 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

October 5, 2016 

 

 

Mr. Todd Baun 

Public Works Director 

City of McCleary 

100 South 3rd Street 

McCleary, WA 98557 

 

RE: Assistance to Firefighter Grant (AFG) Grant FY 2016 

 

Dear Mr. Baun: 

 

The Ferguson Group, L.L.C. (TFG)/eCivis Grant Writing Team appreciates the opportunity to 

provide this technical cost proposal to the City of McCleary to assist with the design, writing, 

and submission of a competitive 2016 Assistance to Firefighter Grant (AFG) federal grant 

application. The 2016 AFG officially begins October 11, 2016 and the deadline for application 

submission is November 18, 2016.  

 

TFG/eCivis understands that City of McCleary Fire Department will request funding to purchase 

Self Contained Breathing Apparatus (SCBA) and turnout gear. Under the AFG program, SCBAs 

and turnout gear are classified as Personal Protective Equipment (PPE). AFG funds used to 

acquire PPE may only be used to acquire compliant PPE for firefighting personnel. Only the 

acquisition of PPE compliant with the most current edition of NFPA 1971, 1976, 1977, 1981, 

and 1999 are eligible activities. The acquisition of used, refurbished, or updated PPE will be 

ineligible for reimbursement. PPE requested should have the goal of increasing firefighter safety. 

When requesting to replace obsolete or damaged PPE (e.g., turnout gear and SCBA), applicants 

will be asked to provide the age of the items being replaced. 

 

According to AFG’s 2016 priorities, Departments replacing obsolete or damaged PPE would be 

considered a competitive request. In order for PPE to be considered obsolete, the items must be a 

minimum of two NFPA cycles and 10 years of age or older from the date they were 

manufactured. The City understands that if the items requested do not meet the definition of 

“obsolete” that the application will be less competitive. The City of McCleary also understands 

that the AFG program requires a match. Fire Departments serving a jurisdiction of 20,000 

residents or fewer must provide a cash match of not less than 5% of the grant awarded.  

 

As part of the service offering, TFG/ECivis will work with the McCleary Fire Department to 

complete the entire AFG application, including: 

 

1) Assisting in defining the most competitive project scope 

2) Entering all required data into the online FEMA platform 

3) Drafting and finalizing required narratives, including: 



 www.thefergusongroup.com 

a. Critical Infrastructure 

b. Firefighter Training 

c. A description of your organization and the community you serve 

d. Need for Federal Financial Assistance 

e. Budget Detail language 

f. Project Description 

g. Cost-Benefit Analysis 

h. Statement of Effect 

 

As the federal grants consultant for ECivis, TFG will work at the direction of the City of 

McCleary. TFG will prepare all federal grant application forms, as well as the project narrative 

that is required as part of the application, and provide to the City a completed application prior to 

the grant deadline. The City of McCleary will be responsible for providing TFG with the 

required data, all log in information for the FEMA grant portal, participate on grant conference 

calls and provide any additional documentation or information requested by the grant writer.  

 

Based on the above parameters, TFG proposes to be compensated through a set retainer fee of 

$5,950.00 for all time expended for professional services. TFG will invoice the City of McCleary 

for one half of the professional fee retainer $2,975.00 as a deposit upon signing the contract. 

Work will be billed against the initial deposit, and all work billed thereafter will be invoiced at 

the end of the month for payment. Any expenses incurred in this effort will be billed separately, 

and TFG expects payment within 30 days. A detailed time billing summary will be provided.  

 

Heidi Schott, TFG Grant Services Manager, will be responsible for managing the project, and we 

may call upon other employees of our firm to assist in this engagement on an as-needed basis.  
 

TFG appreciates the opportunity to work with the City of McCleary. If this letter correctly 

reflects your understanding of the terms and conditions of TFG’s representation, please indicate 

your acceptance by signing two originals of this letter and returning one to us for our records.  

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

 

W. Roger Gwinn 

Chief Executive Officer 

 

ACKNOWLEDGED AND AGREED TO BY: 

 

 

 

_____________________________   ______________________________  

W. Roger Gwinn Todd Baun 

Chief Executive Officer Public Works Director 

The Ferguson Group, LLC City of McCleary  

      

    

    

October 5, 2016______________   _____________________________ 

Date       Date 











STAFF REPORT 

 

To: Mayor Schiller 

From: Todd Baun, Director of Public Works 

Date: October 21st, 2016 

Re: Pole Attachment Rates 

 

     

Over the past year, the subject of raising our pole attachment rates has come up.  

Currently we charge a $7.00 attachment rate for each of connection to our power poles.  

This charge has been in place since Resolution 419 was adopted in January of 1999.  

 

Part of the rate study was to come up with a pole attachment rate.  I have attached the 

report of their findings. Our rate study suggested our attachment fee should be in the 

$12.00 to $15.93 range.   

 

Based on the recommendation in the report, I propose a charge of $14.00 per attachment.  

I believe that our attachment fees should also be reviewed and adjusted annually or bi-

annually.   

 

 
Action Requested: 

 

 

Please discuss rate and if satisfactory, allow Dan to draft an ordinance with the new rate 

and adjustment method.   

 

Tab F 



Mr. Todd Baun, Public Works Director      /September 19, 2016 /                                  Page 1 

 

 
10710 Town Square Dr. NE, Suite 201, Minneapolis, MN 55449    763.755.5122    Fax: 763.755.7028    www.powersystem.org 

ADDITIONAL LOCATIONS:  Madison, WI    Marietta, OH    Indianapolis, IN    Sioux Falls, SD 

 

 

 

      September 19, 2016 

 

 

 

Todd Baun  

Public Works Director 

City of McCleary  

McCleary , WA  98557 

 

Dear Mr. Baun: 

 

Attached is the completed pole attachment analysis, with  summary and recommendations.    

 

A. Data Integrity 

 

The pole attachment rate is comprised of three factors: allocation factor, pole cost, and carrying 

charge.    We offer the following comments with regard to the data integrity: 

 

Allocation Factor 

 

This factor is used to allocate the portion of the pole that can be charged to the pole attacher. 

The supplied pole records were excellent and allowed us to determine a sound allocation 

factor. 

 

Pole Cost  

 

The Original Installed Cost (OIC) for the poles was not available.  Our work-around was to 

take a replacement cost for a pole, and then adjust it using the Handy-Whitman Index to 

derive an original installed cost for the various years the poles were installed.   

 

The replacement cost per pole size was determined for each pole height by our engineering 

staff.  This formed the basis to derive the OIC and net book value pole cost.  A weighted 

average of the pole cost was used in the rate analysis.   Refer to Page 7 (or worksheet tab 

"PSE OIC").   

 

Carrying Charge 

 

The carrying charge is used to calculate the annual cost of owning and maintaining a pole.  

We did not have adequate information to determine this from the supplied information.  Our 

work-around is outlined below.  Refer to Page 8 ( or worksheet tab "carry chrg"). 

 

 O&M and A&G - Use data from a 2012 American Public Power Association (APPA) 

Financial and Operating Ratios report to act as a proxy for both Operations & 



Mr. Todd Baun, Public Works Director      /September 19, 2016 /                                  Page 2 

 

 
10710 Town Square Dr. NE, Suite 201, Minneapolis, MN 55449    763.755.5122    Fax: 763.755.7028    www.powersystem.org 

ADDITIONAL LOCATIONS:  Madison, WI    Marietta, OH    Indianapolis, IN    Sioux Falls, SD 

Maintenance and Administrative & General costs.  We used data for the West region.   

The APPA report also had operating ratios listed by size of utility.  We elected not to use 

that data as it would have significantly increased the carrying charge and we had no basis 

to defend such numbers.  Excerpts of the relevant APPA tables are included in the 

detailed spreadsheet model.  (See  worksheet tab "carry chrg"). 

 Cost of Capital - We determined this by using a 4% bond rate plus a 1.3% return.  The 

bond rate was an average of Washington municipal bonds over the 2009 to 2016 period.  

The 1.3% return is the weighted average return for McCleary for the 2011 to 2015 period 

(using the supplied budget sheet.  Refer to Page 9 (or cell M143 in worksheet “return").  

The year by year return varied from a high of 3.6% to a low of minus 2.2%. 

 Depreciation - We used a 35 year life.  Annual depreciation was 1/35 or 2.9% per year. 

 Total Plant - The total McCleary distribution OIC was estimated by using plant data for 

other small municipals in Washington.  The proxy to determine total plant was $3,670 per 

customer times 1,000 customers.  This gave us an original installed cost of $3,700,000 for 

the McCleary distribution system.  Refer to Page 8 ( or worksheet tab "carry chrg").  We 

used the average pole age of 22 years as a proxy for the age of the entire McCleary plant. 

 

 

B. FCC and APPA Rental Methodology 

 

Below is a brief description of the various rate methodologies. 

 

FCC Rate Formula 

 

1. Pre--2011 formula 

a. Pole cost is based on original installed cost of each pole which is then depreciated  

b. Only 2/3 of the common pole length is cost shared.  Sharing ratio is based on 

average number of attachments which includes the electric utility that owns the 

pole. 

c. Carrying charge is based on net plant.  Carrying charge includes A&G, O&M, 

cost of capital and depreciation. 

2. Post - 2011 formula 

a. The price derived using the pre-2011 formula is lowered by the following ratios:  

.66 for urban and .44 for rural. 

b. A special formula or a "floor" is set by having a carrying charge cover only A&G 

and O&M.  No capital recovery of the pole is included in determining this 

minimum charge. 

 

APPA Rate Formula 

 

1. Pole cost is based on original installed cost of each pole.  (i.e., pole cost is not 

depreciated) 

2. 100% of the common pole length including the 40 inch safety space is cost shared.  

Sharing ratio is based on average number of attachments which includes the electric 

utility that owns the pole. 



Mr. Todd Baun, Public Works Director      /September 19, 2016 /                                  Page 3 

 

 
10710 Town Square Dr. NE, Suite 201, Minneapolis, MN 55449    763.755.5122    Fax: 763.755.7028    www.powersystem.org 

ADDITIONAL LOCATIONS:  Madison, WI    Marietta, OH    Indianapolis, IN    Sioux Falls, SD 

3. Carrying charge is based on gross plant.   Carrying charge includes A&G, O&M, cost of 

capital and depreciation. 

 

Washington State formula 

 

1. Washington state statute RCW 54.04.045 provides a formula which regulated utilities 

use.   

2. It is a 50/50 blend of the FCC pre 2011 formula and the APPA formula. 

3. Municipals are exempt from both FCC and Washington state regulations. 

 

C. Recommendations and Observations 

 

1. The pole rental rates developed should be considered as “ball park" due to the many 

assumptions used to make up for the lack of financial data. 

2. Hence, we suggest that any decision to raise rates be tempered by: 

a. Not being overly aggressive in raising rates which may be difficult to defend.   

b. Knowing how McCleary's new rates compare to neighboring utilities. 

3. A philosophical decision also enters into this.  Should the City want to promote 

broadband, then raising the rates may be a disincentive to the broadband goal.  Our 

observations of the FCC pole attachment rate design was centered on forcing the pole 

rental lower to promote broadband. 

4. McCleary's poles are fairly old at 22 years.  The pole cost used in the analysis will tend to 

increase as poles are replaced.  For this reason, it may be useful to review the attachment 

rates every few years. 

5. Rate Recommendation -  We suggest that the pole rates could range from a low of 

$12.00/pole/year to a high of $15.93/pole/year.  Refer to Page 4 (or worksheet tab 

"Summary").   The low end is based on the Minimum FCC method.  The high end is 

based on the State of Washington formula that allows a 50/50 split between the FCC (pre 

2011 method) and the American Public Power Association method.  Note that the high 

end ($15.93) is within the range of several peer utilities in the region.  Should the 

McCleary lean towards the higher rate ($15.93), consideration should be given to a 

phase-in period. 

 

 

      Very truly yours, 

 
      Richard J. Macke 

      Vice President, Economics, Rates, 

and Business Planning 

 

cc:  Ms. Angie Sanchez Virnoche, FCS Group 

cc: John Gasal, PSE 

 

Attachments 

  



Mr. Todd Baun, Public Works Director      /September 19, 2016 /                                  Page 4 

 

 
10710 Town Square Dr. NE, Suite 201, Minneapolis, MN 55449    763.755.5122    Fax: 763.755.7028    www.powersystem.org 

ADDITIONAL LOCATIONS:  Madison, WI    Marietta, OH    Indianapolis, IN    Sioux Falls, SD 

 
  

Summary Pole Attachment Results

Method Cost of Pole

Carrying 

Charge

Allocation 

Factor

Annual 

Rental

1 FCC pre 2011 269$            31.7% 18.9% 16.16$          

2 FCC post 2011:

3   Urban (.66 * line 1 ) 10.67$          

4   Rural (.44 * line 1) 7.11$             

5   Minimum (O&M + A&G) 269$            23.6% 18.9% 12.00$          

7 APPA 441$            11.8% 30.2% 15.70$          

8 1/2 of FCC pre 2011 & APPA 15.93$          

Change in Revenue based on Calculated Rentals

Existing 

rate

 FCC Rate, 

pre -2011 

FCC 

Minimum 

Rate APPA rate

50/50 

Blend

number attacchments 1113 1113 1113 1113 1113

Rate per Pole 7.00$           16.16$         12.00$      15.70$          15.93$     

Total Revenue 7,791$         17,987$       13,359$    17,479$        17,733$   

Change from existing - 10,196$       5,568$      9,688$          9,942$     

Peer Group Pole Rental Rates

Utility Rate

City of Centralia 14.27$         

City of Port Angeles 15.85$         

Jefferson Cty PUD 18.56$         

Grays Harbor PUC 20.50$         

City of Milton 23.15$         

Cowltiz PUD 30.04$         

Average 20.40$         

Median 19.53$         

Rate Recommendation

Range Rate

Low End 12.00$         

High End 15.93$         



Mr. Todd Baun, Public Works Director      /September 19, 2016 /                                  Page 5 

 

 
10710 Town Square Dr. NE, Suite 201, Minneapolis, MN 55449    763.755.5122    Fax: 763.755.7028    www.powersystem.org 

ADDITIONAL LOCATIONS:  Madison, WI    Marietta, OH    Indianapolis, IN    Sioux Falls, SD 

 
  

Allocation Factors

FCC method

Number poles with 1 attachment 197

Number poles with 2 or more attach. 436

Number of communication  attachers 1069 E7+E8=E9

Total poles with attachments 633

Average No. Attachers/Pole 2.69 Includes utility as attacherE9/E10+1=E12

Space Occupied 1

Two-Thirds 0.667

Unusable Space 26.5

No. Attaching Entities 2.69 E12=E17

Pole Height 40 Base on McCleary average

Attacher Responsibility Percentage 18.9% (E14+(E15*(E16/E17)))/E18 =E19

APPA method

Pole Height 40

Attachment space 1

Assignable space 10.17

Common space 29.8

Number attachers 2.69

Allocation components:

  assignable 2.5%

  common space 27.7%

Attacher Responsibility Percentage 30.2%



Mr. Todd Baun, Public Works Director      /September 19, 2016 /                                  Page 6 

 

 
10710 Town Square Dr. NE, Suite 201, Minneapolis, MN 55449    763.755.5122    Fax: 763.755.7028    www.powersystem.org 

ADDITIONAL LOCATIONS:  Madison, WI    Marietta, OH    Indianapolis, IN    Sioux Falls, SD 

Summary Pole Statistics 

 

 
 

  

Summary by pole size

Size Average Age Number poles % # poles * size

30 28.1 58 8% 1740

35 33.1 170 23% 5950

40 21.1 275 37% 11000

45 11.6 209 28% 9405

50 14.2 6 1% 300

55 28.8 4 1% 220

60 40.0 16 2% 960

65 37.5 2 0% 130

75 7.5 10 1% 750

Total 22.0 750 100% 30455

Weighted average pole height 40.6067

Summary grouped by age <=30 35 40 45 >=50

Age, years Number poles % # poles

1.0 27 4% 0 2 10 15 0

2.0 15 2% 0 0 0 15 0

3.0 8 1% 0 0 8 0 0

5.0 47 6% 1 6 3 30 7

7.0 2 0% 0 0 0 2 0

8.0 1 0% 0 0 1 0 0

10.0 180 24% 11 23 67 77 2

15.0 116 15% 4 4 51 48 9

20.0 49 7% 7 3 35 4 0

23.0 1 0% 0 0 1 0 0

24.0 1 0% 1 0 0 0 0

25.0 45 6% 9 12 19 5 0

30.0 50 7% 7 23 15 4 1

35.0 46 6% 0 30 14 2 0

40.0 84 11% 5 22 37 3 17

45.0 6 1% 1 3 0 0 2

50.0 59 8% 11 30 14 4 0

55.0 7 1% 0 7 0 0 0

60.0 5 1% 1 4 0 0 0

65.0 1 0% 0 1 0 0 0

750 100% 58 170 275 209 38

Total Poles

Detail Age Summary by Pole Size



Mr. Todd Baun, Public Works Director      /September 19, 2016 /                                  Page 7 

 

 
10710 Town Square Dr. NE, Suite 201, Minneapolis, MN 55449    763.755.5122    Fax: 763.755.7028    www.powersystem.org 

ADDITIONAL LOCATIONS:  Madison, WI    Marietta, OH    Indianapolis, IN    Sioux Falls, SD 

 
 

  

Develop Original Installed Cost and Depreciated Pole Cost using 

PSE engineering estimate for replacement cost

Summary of Pole Cost using PSE replacement cost

Size

Replacement 

Pole Cost

Number 

Poles

Original 

Installed Cost

Net Book 

Value

30 638$                  58 14,981$              6,866$            

35 674$                  170 39,009$              15,341$          

40 765$                  275 108,599$            61,685$          

45 915$                  209 134,276$            99,368$          

50 & greater 2,000$              38 33,864$              18,702$          

Total 750 330,730$            201,962$       

Average Pole Cost for Analysis 441$                    269$                

Common Analysis Inputs

Depreciation 35

Handy Whitman Index 

for 2015 Replacement 

Pole 683.0                 



Mr. Todd Baun, Public Works Director      /September 19, 2016 /                                  Page 8 

 

 
10710 Town Square Dr. NE, Suite 201, Minneapolis, MN 55449    763.755.5122    Fax: 763.755.7028    www.powersystem.org 

ADDITIONAL LOCATIONS:  Madison, WI    Marietta, OH    Indianapolis, IN    Sioux Falls, SD 

 

Estimation of Annual Carrying Charge

Results

Annual Carrying Charge :

Based on Original Installed Cost 11.8% Used for APPA formula

Based on Net Plant 31.7% Used for FCC formula

Calculations

Estimate total distribution plant

  # customers 1000

  $ distribution plant per customer 3,670$            Based small WA utilities  (table 1 below)

Original Installed Cost 3,669,514$     Estimate for total McCleary Dist Plant

  Age of Plant 22 same as pole age

  Depreciation life in years 35

  Depreciation in $ 2,306,552$     

  Net Plant 1,362,962$     

Carrying Charge Components

A&G

  # customers 1000

  A&G/customer (APPA data) 159$              Table 2

  Total Annual A&G 159,000$        

  A&G in % of Net Plant 11.7%

O&M

  # customers 1,000$            

  O&M/customer (APPA data) 162$              Table 2

  Total Annual O&M 162,000$        

  O&M in % of Net Plant 11.9%

Pole Depreciation

  Depreciation life, years 35

  Rate per year 2.9% 2.9%

Cost of Capital

  Bond Rate (see note below) 4.0% See Chart 1 below

  Return 1.3% See worksheet "return"

  Total Cost of Capital 5.3% 5.3%

Total Carrying Charge in % net Plant 31.7%

Carrying Charge in % of OIC 11.8%



Mr. Todd Baun, Public Works Director      /September 19, 2016 /                                  Page 9 

 

 
10710 Town Square Dr. NE, Suite 201, Minneapolis, MN 55449    763.755.5122    Fax: 763.755.7028    www.powersystem.org 

ADDITIONAL LOCATIONS:  Madison, WI    Marietta, OH    Indianapolis, IN    Sioux Falls, SD 

 

 

Determine % return as proxy for cost of capital

2011 2012 2013 2014 2014 2015 2011-2015

Operating Revenue Actual Actual Actual Actual Budgeted Proposed 6 yr total

340 Sale of Electricity + other 2,141,176 2,153,857 2,232,829 2,310,509 2,471,000 2,448,000 13,757,372

360 Misc Revenues 11,687 21,916 16,127 9,954 11,840 9,311 80,834

Total revenue 2,152,863 2,175,773 2,248,956 2,320,463 2,482,840 2,457,311 13,838,206

0

Operating Expenditures 0

530 Purchased Power, transmission, distribution 2,085,292 2,097,150 2,181,149 2,309,956 2,471,831 2,511,850 13,657,228

Net Operating Increase

Return 67,572 78,623 67,807 10,507 11,009 -54,539 180,978

Return in % of total revenue 3.1% 3.6% 3.0% 0.5% 0.4% -2.2% 1.3%














































